
 
HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  April 11, 2012 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541‐6633 

 
The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the Commission 
Clerk.  Upon recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on an 
agenda item or on business introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item.  Please be brief and limit your 
comments to the specific subject under discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.   
 
To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.  The Chairperson has the 
discretion to further limit this time if warranted by the number of speakers. 
 
The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, April 5, 2012, duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board 
of Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of 
Alameda. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact the 
Housing Authority office at (510) 727‐8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 
 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  PAGE 

2.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Appoint chief negotiator for upcoming negotiations with SEIU 1021 

 

3.  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 14, 2012 MEETING  2 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
On matters not on the Agenda 

 

5.  NEW BUSINESS   

5‐1.  Recognize Gregory Koubek as HACA’s Shining Star  PRESENTATION  8 

5‐2.  Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011  ACTION  9 

5‐3.  Revisions to HACA’s Section 8 Administrative Plan  ACTION  15 

5‐4.  Resolution Approving Updated Utility Allowance Schedule  ACTION  17 

5‐5.  Procurement Awards  INFORMATION  21 

5‐6.  Quarterly Investment Portfolio for QE March 31, 2012  INFORMATION  22 

5‐7.  Budget Status Report  INFORMATION  24 

5‐8.  Program Activity Report  INFORMATION  27 

6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS     

7.  COMMISSIONER REPORTS      

8.  COMMUNICATIONS  
Oral report on NAHRO Legislative Conference in Washington DC

   

9.  ADJOURNMENT     
 
 



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
March 14, 2012 

 
 



3 

HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING:  MARCH 14, 2012 8:00 A.M. 

HACA BOARD ROOM 
 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
  Call to Order 

Chairperson Steiner called the meeting to order at 8:01 a.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present:   Cmrs. Asher, Biddle, Cashmere, Gacoscos, Gerry, Haddock,  Iosefa, Peixoto, and 
Steiner. 
Excused:  Cmrs.  Apodaca, Natarajan, and Reed.       

 
2.  ACTION:  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2012 MEETING 
  Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the February 8, 2012 meeting as presented. 

 
Motion/Second:  Biddle/Gacoscos. 
7 ayes; 1 abstention:  Cmr. Gerry; 1 not present for the vote:  Cmr. Iosefa.   
Motion passed. 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT – On matters not on the agenda 
  None. 

 
4.  NEW BUSINESS 

4‐1.  RESOLUTION NO. 04‐12:  APPROVING HACA’S ANNUAL PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012 
  Ron Dion, Deputy Director for Programs, presented the staff report.  Mr. Dion reported that 

the  draft  of  HACA’s  Annual  PHA  Plan  was  revised  since  it  was  last  presented  to  the 
Commission  in  February.   He  explained  that  the  revised  draft  of  the  Plan  now  includes 
provisions for housing assistance for veterans in the city of Dublin and updated information 
related  to  the Capital  Fund program  that  reflects  information  recently  released by HUD.  
Mr. Dion also reported that a meeting was held with the Resident Advisory Board (RAB) to 
seek their input on the Plan and that the RAB had no proposed changes. 
 
Recommendation:   Adopt Resolution No. 04‐12 approving HACA’s 5‐Year and Annual Plan 
for the Fiscal Year 2012. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Peixoto asked if the VASH vouchers were similar to Section 8 
vouchers.   Mr. Dion explained that they are somewhat similar but differ  in that the rental 
assistance  is combined with  supportive  services provided by  the Department of Veterans 
Affairs.  Ms. Gouig reported that HACA currently administers 75 VASH vouchers. 



4 

Recommendation:   Adopt Resolution No. 04‐12 approving HACA’s 5‐Year and Annual Plan 
for fiscal year 2012. 
 
Motion/Second:   Biddle/Peixoto. 
Ayes:  All 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
4‐2.  RESOLUTION NO. 05‐12:  AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR 100 REPLACEMENT VOUCHERS 

FOR NIDUS AND DYER DEVELOPMENTS IN UNION CITY 
   Ron Dion presented the staff report.   Mr. Dion reported that HACA has received approval 

from HUD to dispose of 100 public housing units at the Nidus and Dyer developments and 
that HACA can now apply for 100 replacement vouchers. 
 
Recommendation:    Adopt  Resolution  No.  05‐12  authorizing  the  application  for  100 
replacement vouchers for the Nidus and Dyer developments in Union City. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Biddle asked how many public housing units will remain after 
the 100 units at Nidus and Dyer are converted  to project‐based voucher units.   Mr. Dion 
stated  that  36  units  in  Emeryville  and  36  units  in  Union  City  will  remain.   Ms.  Gouig 
explained that these remaining units are family units and that HUD has placed restrictions 
on how many family units within a project can be converted to project based vouchers.   
 
Motion/Second:  Gacoscos/Haddock.       
Ayes:  All   Motion passed.           
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4‐3.  ACTION:  BUDGET/AUDIT AND NEGOTIATIONS COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
  Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  The Commission discussed appointments to the 

Budget/Audit  and  Negotiations  Committee  for  the  2012  fiscal  year.    The  following 
Commissioners agreed  to  serve on  this Committee:   Cmrs. Asher, Gerry, Natarajan, Reed 
and Steiner.    
   
Recommendation:    Appoint  Cmrs.  Asher,  Gerry,  Natarajan,  Reed  and  Steiner  to  the 
Budget/Audit and Negotiations Committee for the 2012 fiscal year.   
 
Motion/Second:  Biddle/Gacoscos. 
Ayes:  All   Motion passed.           
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4‐4.  ACTION:  SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
  Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  The Commission discussed appointments to the 

2012 HACA  Scholarship Committee.    The  following Commissioners  volunteered  to  serve:  
Cmrs. Biddle, Cashmere, Gacoscos and Gerry.   
 
Commission Discussion:  Chairperson Steiner suggested that staff check with Cmr. Reed to 
see if she would like to serve on this Committee again.   
 



5 

Recommendation:  Appoint Cmrs. Biddle, Cashmere, Gacoscos and Gerry to the 2012 HACA 
Scholarship Committee.   
 
Motion/Second:  Haddock/Asher. 
Ayes:  All   Motion passed. 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4‐5.  ACTION:  AUTHORIZE PARTICIPATION IN PHA CONSORTIUM RE:  HUD DEMONSTRATION 
  Christine Gouig presented the staff report.   Ms. Gouig reported that she and Chairperson 

Steiner  recently  heard  a  presentation  on HUD’s Moving  To Work  (MTW)  demonstration 
program.    She  spoke  about  the  history  of  the MTW  program,  described  the  program’s 
objectives, and what the MTW program’s key benefits would mean  for HACA.   Ms. Gouig 
noted  that  HACA  is  not  eligible  to  compete  for  an MTW  designation  at  this  time  and 
explained that congressional approval  is needed  in order to expand the MTW program to 
allow housing authorities such as HACA to compete.  She further reported that HACA along 
with  a  few  other  housing  authorities  in  the  region  have  discussed  a  proposal  to  form  a 
consortium and work with a Washington governmental affairs consultant to advocate for an 
expanded MTW program.  Ms. Gouig stated that HACA’s participation would be funded by 
the Local Fund and that HACA would be able to end its participation at any time.   
 
Recommendation:  Authorize HACA’s participation in the consortium.   
 
Commission  Discussion:    Chairperson  Steiner  commented  that  it  is  important  to  get 
legislation passed to expand the MTW program and encouraged the Commissioners to stay 
actively involved.    
 
Cmr. Peixoto commented that with the  flexibility MTW offers, there  is a potential  for the 
misuse  of  funds.    Ms.  Gouig  commented  that  housing  authorities  that  have  an  MTW 
designation must balance their funding very carefully. 
 
Cmr. Peixoto asked how HACA acquired the funds  in the Local Fund.   Ms. Gouig  indicated 
that HACA saved these funds over many years and gave an example of one of the various 
sources from which the funds originated.  
 
Cmr. Cashmere commented that some housing authorities under the MTW program have 
not  managed  the  program  well.    Ms.  Gouig  commented  that  HUD’s  recent  Notice  of 
Funding Availability for the MTW program indicates that there will be a rigorous evaluation 
and testing component which the program did not have initially. 
 
Public Comment:  A member of the public commented that while the cost for participation 
in  the  consortium  is  considerable  given  the  recent  cuts  to  funding,  the MTW  program 
would be very beneficial to HACA. 
 
Motion/Second:  Biddle/Gacoscos.  
Ayes:  All   Motion passed. 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 



6 

4‐6.  INFORMATION:  PROCUREMENT AWARD INFORMATION 
  Tom Makin, Deputy Director  for Operations, presented  the staff report.   He reported  the 

following  procurement  actions:    the  award  of  a  contract  in  the  amount  of  $40,000  to 
Security Engineers, the award of a contract for HVAC services in the amount of $60,000 to 
Prime Mechanical, and the award of a contract for  legal services  in the areas of  labor and 
employment in the amount of $89,000 to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW). 
 
Public Comment:  A member of the public asked if staff anticipates using these services up 
to  the maximum amounts set  in  the contracts.   Mr. Makin  indicated  that  the amounts of 
the contracts were  set based on data  from  the previous year and  that  it  is  likely  the  full 
amount would be needed, particularly with the work that is required on the units that are 
being converted to the PBV program.  
 
Cmr. Gerry asked if HACA’s Maintenance Workers can complete some of the work and Mr. 
Makin stated that they are able to do some of the work but not all since some units require 
extensive repair and/or renovations. 

 

Items 4‐7 and 4‐8 were heard out of agenda order. 
   

4‐8.  INFORMATION:  PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORT 
  Report  received.    Sharon  DeCray,  HAFS  Manager,  reported  that  staff  is  preparing  the 

application  for  FSS  funding  for  the  2013  fiscal  year.   Ms. Gouig highlighted  some of  the 
workshops that staff is preparing for the FSS participants. 

 

4‐7.  INFORMATION:  BUDGET STATUS REPORT 
  Report received with no questions or comments from the Commission 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  None. 

 

6.  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
  None. 
   
7.  COMMUNICATIONS 
  None. 
 
8.  ADJOURNMENT 
  There being no further business Chairperson Steiner adjourned the meeting at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
   

            ____________________________________ 
Melissa Taesali        Christine Gouig     
Executive Assistant        Executive Director/Commission Secretary 
        Approved:  ____________________________________  
            Christine Steiner, Chairperson 



7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
April 11, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2006  the Housing Authority  created a Communications Committee  composed of  staff 
from all departments.   The Committee created an “Employee of the Quarter” recognition 
program to acknowledge exceptional  individual contributions of HACA employees.   At the 
end of 2011 the Committee decided to revamp the program to allow more time for chosen 
employees  to  enjoy  their  recognition.    The  Committee  re‐named  the  award  “HACA’s 
Shining  Star”  and  extended  the  recognition  period  to  six months,  so  there will  be  two 
Shining Stars per year.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The  Housing  Authority  is  privileged  to  have  on  its  staff  Gregory  Koubek,  a  Housing 
Inspector in HACA’s Housing Assistance and Family Services department.  His selection was 
announced  at  an  all‐staff  meeting  held  on  March  28.    Those  who  nominated  Greg 
recognized him  for his outstanding work  in  the  following  categories:   Acknowledgement 
from the Public, Co‐Workers and Clients; Team Effort & Flexibility in Working with Others; 
Customer  Service;  and  Problem  Solving.    Some  of  the  comments made  by  those  who 
nominated Greg were: 

 
“Greg  is always willing to help his co‐workers out when they need his help.   If the Housing 
Specialists need something done they can count on him.  If something needs to be expedited 
in  order  to  house  a  family  in  a  tough  situation,  we  can  count  on  his  help.    He  never 
complains  and  just  gets  the  job  done.   He  is  a  true  team  player  that  provides  excellent 
customer service  to our participants.   After working at HACA many years doing  the same 
type of work, his work  load changed due to budget cuts.   He did not complain and he has 
handled the changes very well.” 
 
“Greg is always a pleasure to work with…has always performed his job duties in nothing less 
than an outstanding manner…” 

 
Staff recommends that your Housing Commission recognize Greg as HACA’s Shining Star for 
April‐September 2012.  
 

Subject:  Recognize Gregory Koubek as HACA’s Shining Star for April‐
September 2012 

   
Exhibits Attached:  None 



9 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

Subject:  Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011  
   
Exhibits Attached:  Attachment A:  Audit Reports and Certificates of Actual Modernization 

Cost  
   
Recommendation:  Accept Reports and Certificates 
   
Financial Statement:  None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The  Housing  Authority’s  (HACA)  audit  for  the  fiscal  year  ending  June  30,  2011  was 
completed by the auditors, Patel & Associates, on March 21, 2012.   
 
The  audit  includes  financial  information  from  the Dublin Housing Authority  (DHA)  for 
the period July 1, 2010 through March 31, 2011.  As your Commission will recall, when 
HUD approved the disposition of DHA’s Arroyo Vista public housing project  it required 
that DHA consolidate with HACA. The consolidation occurred on March 1, 2011.   As a 
result  of  the  consolidation,  HACA  was  required  to  submit  a  combined  financial 
statement that includes DHA’s financial data as part of its June 30, 2011 fiscal year end 
statement and audit.   
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report (pages 1‐2) 
 
In the  independent auditor's report addressed to the Board of Commissioners, Patel & 
Associates opines  that HACA’s  financial  statements  at  the  fiscal  year ending  June 30, 
2011  were  stated  fairly  in  all material  respects.    The  auditors  did  not  identify  any 
deficiencies  in  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  that  they  considered  to  be 
material weaknesses.    The  audit  is  an  unqualified  audit  and  there were  no  financial 
statement  findings  nor  were  there  any material  findings  regarding  compliance  with 
program or internal control requirements.   
 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (pages 3‐10) 
 
The MD&A serves as an introduction to the agency wide financial statements and is an 
overview of HACA’s  financial activity.    It highlights changes  in our  financial position as 



10 

well as  identifies  significant  financial and  individual  fund  issues.    It also discusses  the 
current year's results in comparison with the prior year’s, with emphasis on the current 
year.   Because  key  financial  information  and  current  year  results  of  operations were 
compared with  those of  the prior year, DHA’s  financial data  for  the  fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2010 were combined with HACA’s as well. 
     
The  Statement of Net Assets presents  information  about HACA’s  financial  and  capital 
resources (assets) and its obligations to creditors (liabilities), and is similar to a balance 
sheet.  The Authority‐Wide Statement of Net Assets is shown on Table 1, page 6.  
 
 Total assets were $47.40 million. 
 Total liabilities were $2.16 million. 
 HACA’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $45.24 million (net assets).   

 
Pages 4‐5 provide the definition of each of the three categories of net assets.   
 
 $8.91 million  are  invested  in  capital  assets.    This  includes  land,  building  and 

improvements, and furniture and equipment net of accumulated depreciation.  
 $18.56 million  are  net  restricted  assets  (NRA)  and  include  $11.00 million  of 

restricted monies  received  from  the net proceeds of  the disposition of Arroyo 
Vista  to  be  loaned  to  the  redeveloper  of  the  site.    The  balance  also  includes 
$7.44  million  of  excess  Housing  Choice  Voucher  (HCV)  and  Veterans  Affairs 
Supportive Housing (VASH) programs monies restricted for payment of housing 
assistance  payments  (HAP)  to  landlords  up  to  the  number  of  vouchers 
authorized by HUD and cannot be used for operations.  

 $17.77 million are unrestricted net assets (UNA). 
 
The  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses  and  Changes  in  Net  Assets  reports  HACA’s 
revenues by source and type and its expenses by category to substantiate the change in 
net assets (similar to net income or loss) for the fiscal year.   
 
 Table 2 on page 7 shows  total revenue of $101.36 million compared  to $86.20 

million in 2010, an increase of $15.16 million (18%). 
 



11 

 
 
 
The disposition of Arroyo Vista resulted in a gain on sale of capital assets of $8.65 
million.  HACA also received other revenue of $3 million related to the disposition.   
 
Excluding revenues related to the disposition, HUD provided more than 90% of HACA’s 
total  revenue  ($84.69 million)  so  changes  in  HUD  funding  greatly  impact  operating 
results.   The HCV program  funding  represents  the majority of HACA’s  total operating 
subsidies and grants revenue.   The HCV Program received higher annual contributions 
from HUD as compared to last year because of the award of requested renewal funding 
set‐aside funds and initial funding for the VASH Program. 
 
 Total  expenses  were  $86.80  million  compared  to  $88.10  million  in  2010,  a 

decrease of $1.30 million (1%).     
 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
Sources of Revenue 

FY 2011

HUD PHA operating 
grants

83.44%

Capital grants
0.11%

Other revenue
6.51%

Gain on sale of 
capital assets

8.53%

Tenant Revenue
1.34%

Investment income 
0%



12 

 
 
The largest program expenditure as reflected in the chart was for HAP.  Most expenses 
changed slightly with the exception of tenant services, which  included the payment of 
relocation costs as part of the Arroyo Vista project disposition agreement. 
 
Audited Financial Statements (pages 11‐15 and 33‐34) 
 
Patel  &  Associates  conducted  an  audit  of  the  financial  statements  of  each  of  the 
programs  administered by HACA.    Each program  is  considered  a  separate  accounting 
entity with its own assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses. 
 
Page  13  shows  the  Statement  of  Net  Assets  –  Proprietary  Funds  for  all  programs 
individually  and  in  total.   Page 33  shows  the  individual  funds  that make up  the  total 
under the Other Enterprise Non‐Major Funds.   
 
Excluding investment in capital assets, the Low Rent Public Housing program has NRA of 
$11.10 million and UNA of $1.28 million. 
 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
Expenses 
FY 2011

Tenant Services
0.25%

Administrative
9.98%

Maintenance
1.31%

Insurance 
Premiums

0.32%General Expenses
0.22%

Utilities
0.25%

Depreciation 
expense
1.02%

Dw elling units rent 
expense
0.10%

Housing assistance 
payments (HAP)

86.54%



13 

The  Housing  Choice  Voucher  program  has  NRA  of  $6.44 million  and  UNA  of  $2.87 
million. 
 
The Housing Development Fund has a balance of $12.04 million.   
 
The VASH program has an NRA balance of $1.00 million.   
 
Park Terrace has a balance of $917,487 and Ocean Avenue has $674,779. 
 
Pages 14 and 34 show the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.  
As  your  Commission will  note,  these  statements,  under  the  line  item  Income  (Loss) 
before transfers (the fifth line from the bottom of the page), show balances that include 
depreciation  expense.   While  depreciation  is  treated  as  an  expense  that  reduces  the 
results of operations,  it does not have  an  impact on Restricted  and Unrestricted Net 
Assets.   When the depreciation expense  is excluded, the change  in net assets balances 
shows the actual income or loss for the year.   
 
HACA’s Low Rent Public Housing program had a deficit of $73,373. 
   
The HCV program had a net income of $2,099,958 (which is a combination of an income 
of  $2,150,753  due  to  funding  received  in  excess  of  HAP  payments made which  are 
restricted  for  future HAP payments and an operating  loss of $50,795, primarily due to 
reduced administrative fee funding for the first half of calendar year 2011).  
  
The Housing Development Fund had a net income of $2.95 million. 
 
The VASH program had a net income of $1.00 million.   
 
Park Terrace had a net income of $33,353 and Ocean Avenue a net income of $4,482. 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 36‐42) 
 
There  were  no  financial  statement  findings  nor  were  there  any  material  findings 
regarding compliance with  the  requirements applicable  to  the programs administered 
by HACA or internal control requirements (pages 36‐39). 
 
Section  1  –  Summary  of  Auditor’s  Results  on  page  40  shows  that  the  audit was  an 
unqualified  audit.   HACA  is qualified  as  a  low‐risk  auditee because  a  single  audit has 
been conducted and there were no significant findings in the past two years. 
 
Sections  II  and  III  (page  41)  –  There were  no  financial  statement  findings  or  federal 
award findings and questioned costs.  There were no findings reported in the prior year 
(page 42).  



14 

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate 
 
Annual Capital Fund.  Every year, HUD provides Capital Funds to housing authorities for 
the development, financing, and modernization of public housing developments and for 
management  improvements.   Upon expenditure of all  funds  for a given grant year, a 
housing authority must submit to HUD an audited Actual Modernization Cost Certificate 
(AMCC)  for  review and approval  for audit.   After audit verification, HUD approves  the 
AMCC. 
 
The AMCCs for the Capital Fund program are attached.  They were prepared by Patel & 
Associates as part of  the audit of our  fiscal year  June 30, 2011 and  cover  the Capital 
Fund grants awarded to HACA in 2009 and to DHA in 2009 and 2010. 
 
HACA 2009.    The  auditor determined  that  the  total  cost was $357,860,  that  all  costs 
have  been  paid  and  liabilities  discharged  and  that  HACA  did  not  incur  any  budget 
overruns.   The work  funded under  this  contract was  completed within  the  fiscal year 
and the AMCC now closes the grant. 
 
DHA 2009.  The auditor determined that the total cost was $282,742, that all costs have 
been paid and  liabilities discharged and that HACA did not  incur any budget overruns.  
The work  funded  under  this  contract was  completed within  the  fiscal  year  and  the 
AMCC now closes the grant. 
 
DHA 2010.  The auditor determined that the total cost was $282,087, that all costs have 
been paid and  liabilities discharged and that HACA did not  incur any budget overruns.  
The work  funded  under  this  contract was  completed within  the  fiscal  year  and  the 
AMCC now closes the grant. 
 
Staff  recommends  that your Commission accept  the audited  financial  statements and 
reports for all HACA programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 
 
 
 
 



15 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting: April 11, 2012 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
HACA’s Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher  (HCV) Program Administrative Plan  (Admin 
Plan)  sets  forth HACA’s policies  for administering  the  Section 8 Program  in a manner 
consistent  with  HUD  requirements  and  HACA’s  Agency  Plan—its  policies,  programs, 
operations, and  strategies  for meeting  local housing needs and goals.   HACA’s Admin 
Plan is available for public review. 
 
From  time  to  time  it  becomes  necessary  to  amend  the  Admin  Plan  in  order  to 
incorporate changed HUD regulations, revised HACA practices, program initiatives, or to 
make clarifications or corrections. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Policy  revisions  are  proposed  to HACA  Admin  Plan  Chapters  3,  4,  6,  12,  17  and  the 
Admin Plan Glossary.  A red‐line version of the changes is enclosed.  See Attachment B. 
 
Chapter 3 
Adds a provision to Section 3‐III.E. that recognizes successful completion of the CHOICES 
program or new FACT program sponsored by Alameda County Behavioral Health Care 
Services  (BHCS)  as  factors  that HACA will  consider when  deciding whether  to  forego 
denying assistance based on a family’s past history. 
 
Both programs are  targeted  to population of adults with severe mental  illness.   HACA 
provides  a  housing  rental  subsidy  funded  by  BHCS;  other  agencies  provide  multi‐
disciplinary  community  treatment  and  support.    CHOICES  works  sequentially  with 
groups  of  130‐260  voluntary  participants  currently  enrolled  in  one  of  18  County  or 
contract mental  health  service  teams;  FACT  is  targeted  to  adults with  one  or more 
contacts with the criminal justice system. 
 
Chapter 4 
Adds provisions addressing FACT to Sections 4.II.C. and 4.III.C.   

Subject:  Administrative Plan Policy Revisions 
   
Exhibits Attached:  Attachment B:  Redline summary of policy revisions 
   
Recommendation:  Approve proposed policy revisions  
   
Financial Statement:  None 



16 

 
Chapter 6 
Revisions  to  Section 6‐I.G.  for  clarity,  and  the  addition of  Exhibit 6‐3(b)  to document 
how HACA calculates the net cash value of real property. 
 
Chapter 12 
Revisions to Section 12‐I.E. to conform language to new and extant HUD regulations. 
 
Chapter 17 
Clarifies  Section  17‐V.F.  to make  vacancy  payments  to  the  owner  of  a  Project‐Based 
Voucher  project  for  one month,  regardless  of  the  number  of  calendar  days.   Adds  a 
provision to Section 17‐VII.C addressing the new FACT Program sponsored by Alameda 
County Behavioral Health Care Services. 
 
Glossary 
Revisions  to  the definitions of Disabled  family, Elderly  family, Family, and Near‐elderly 
family  to  comply  with  HUD’s  final  rule  regarding  equal  access  to  housing  in  HUD 
programs regardless of sexual orientation or gender identity, published in the February 
3, 2012 Federal Register.  
 
Staff recommends that you approve the revisions to the Admin Plan.   Once approved, 
staff training will be conducted and the revised Plan will be implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 



17 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

Subject:  Utility Allowance Schedule 
   
Exhibits Attached:  ‐ Proposed 07/01/2012 Utility Allowance Schedule 

‐ Resolution 06‐12 
   
Recommendation:  Adopt the attached Resolution 
   
Financial Statement:  Estimated $173,100 increase in Section 8 program costs for FY 

2013 and subsequent fiscal years. 
 
Estimated $1,872 change for the Public Housing Program for FY 
2013 and subsequent fiscal years. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
HACA’s Section 8 Program and Public Housing Program subsidies are applied against the 
family’s  rent and any utilities paid  for by  the  family.   The amount of  the HACA utility 
subsidy is determined by our utility allowance schedule.  The utility allowance schedule 
is  based  on  the  typical  cost  of  essential  utilities  and  services  paid  for  by  energy‐
conserving  households  that  occupy  housing  of  similar  size  and  type  in  HACA’s 
jurisdiction. 
 
HUD requires that housing authorities review their utility allowance schedules at  least 
annually and  revise  them  if utility  rates have  changed, either up or down, by 10% or 
more.  As rates have changed by more than this amount, staff has developed a revised 
utility allowance schedule for your approval. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The  utility  allowances  for  gas  and  electric  service  are  based  on  the  PG&E  California 
Alternate Rates for Energy (CARE) program.   Targeted to very  low  income families, the 
CARE program reduces typical PG&E rates by almost 20%.   In order to obtain the CARE 
rates,  families must  submit  a  simple one‐page  form  to PG&E.   HACA  is  a Community 
Outreach  Contractor  for  PG&E,  providing  information,  applications  and  assistance  to 
Section 8 households and the public wishing to apply  for the CARE program.    In 2009, 
HACA  surveyed  its Section 8 participants  to determine  if  they are participating  in  the 
CARE  program.    Seventy‐percent  (70%)  of  participants  responded  and we  found  that 
nearly 90% of them were participating.  (Another 10% indicated the gas and electric bill 



18 

for their unit was paid by the landlord or someone else so they weren’t eligible for the 
CARE program.) 
 
The  underlying methodology  for  analyzing  gas  and  electric  rates  follows  that  of  an 
outside consultant retained by HACA in 2001, 2002 and 2004 except as otherwise noted. 
 
Gas:  In the past, a snapshot of the gas rates at a fixed point in time was used to set the 
annual utility allowance schedule.  However, since rates fluctuate from month‐to‐month 
and year‐to‐year, HACA began  incorporating a  floating 12‐month rate average  in 2006 
and continues this method for 2012.   This year, gas rates  increased by 3% to 4%.   Last 
year, gas rates increased by 5% to 6%.  The proposed utility allowance schedule reflects 
increases from $0‐$2.   
 
Electricity:    Rates  decreased  in  November  2004  and  have  not  changed  since.  
Consequently,  the  current  HACA  allowances  for  electricity  are  not  changed  on  the 
schedule. 
 
Water:   Water  rates  increased by an average of 7%  this year.    Last year, water  rates 
increased by 6%.   The proposed utility allowance schedule  reflects  increases  from $0‐
$10. 
 
Sewer:    Last  year, HACA  averaged  sewer  rates  for  single  family  homes  and  attached 
homes together.  This year, HACA has calculated sewer rates separately for single family 
homes  and  attached  homes.    Sewer  rates  for  single  family  homes  decreased  by  an 
average of 6% due to the decoupling and sewer rates for attached homes increased by 
an average of 13%.   The proposed utility allowance schedule reflects changes  from $2 
less to $4 more.  These changes include those where the rates changed by less than 10% 
as this is the baseline for future analysis. 
 
Garbage: Garbage rates increased by 3‐5% this year.  The current HACA allowances for 
garbage are not changed on the schedule as the rate changes were less than 10%. 
 
Tenant‐Supplied Stove or Refrigerator:  No increase is proposed over the current $2 per 
month allowance. 
 
 
 
 



19 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
Section 8 Utility Allowance Schedule 

Effective 07/01/2012 for Re‐examinations and Move‐Ins Effective 07/01/2012 or Later 

 

Single Family Homes 
 

Studio 
1 

Bedroom 
2 

Bedrooms 
3 

Bedrooms 
4 

Bedrooms 
5 

Bedrooms 

Electric Heating  10  10  18  23  41  44 

Gas Heating  12  17  20  24  27  33 
             

Electric Cooking  1  2  2  3  3  3 

Gas Cooking  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Electric Hot Water  10  11  19  25  26  26 

Gas Hot Water  7  9  11  16  17  19 
             

Refrigerator (If tenant‐supplied)  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Stove (If tenant‐supplied)  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Water  20  30  38  46  59  68 

Sewer  20  20  20  20  20  20 
             

Trash  22  22  22  38  38  59 
             

Other Electric  11  14  20  24  28  31 
             

Attached Homes 
 

Studio 
1 

Bedroom 
2 

Bedrooms 
3 

Bedrooms 
4 

Bedrooms 
5 

Bedrooms 

Electric Heating  8  8  11  14  17  25 

Gas Heating  10  12  14  16  20  19 
             

Electric Cooking  1  2  2  3  3  3 

Gas Cooking  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Electric Hot Water  10  11  20  25  26  26 

Gas Hot Water  7  9  11  16  19  19 
             

Refrigerator (If tenant‐supplied)  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Stove (If tenant‐supplied)  2  2  2  2  2  2 
             

Water  19  30  35  43  60  62 

Sewer  18  18  18  18  18  18 
             

Trash  22  22  22  38  38  59 
             

Other Electric  11  14  20  24  28  31 



20 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 06‐12 
 

APPROVING UPDATE TO THE UTILITY ALLOWANCE SCHEDULE 
 
  WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) requires 
that housing  authorities  review  their utility allowance  schedules  at  least  annually  and  revise 
them if utility rates have changed by 10% or more; and 
 
  WHEREAS, rates for some utilities have changed by at least 10%; 
 
  NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  that  the  Housing  Commission  of  the  Housing 
Authority of  the County of Alameda does hereby adopt a utility allowance  schedule with an 
effective date of July 1, 2012 for annual re‐examinations and move‐ins with an effective date of 
July 1, 2012 or later. 
 
  PASSED,  APPROVED,  AND  ADOPTED  by  the  Housing  Commission  of  the  Housing 
Authority  of  the  County  of  Alameda  on  this  _________  day  of  __________  2012  by  the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:     
 
NAYS:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
EXCUSED: 
 
ABSENT: 
                                                    
            ___________________________________ 
            Christine Steiner 
            Commission Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Christine Gouig 
Commission Secretary/Executive Director      Adopted: _____________________ 
 
 



21 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The  information  below  is  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Housing  Authority’s 
Procurement Policy, which requires that a procurement action valued between $25,000 
and $100,000 be brought to your Housing Commission as an information item. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
On  January 13, 2012, HACA  issued an  Invitation  for Bids  to  remodel a  three‐bedroom 
residence  at  33615  Fifth  Street, Union  City.  The  scope  of work  included  a  complete 
remodel of the bathrooms and kitchen, replacement of all doors, windows, flooring and 
HVAC systems and some exterior work. The bid was awarded on March 12, 2012 and a 
contract was executed with Men of All Trades, Oakland, CA. The amount of the contract 
was $40,245.70. Funding for this work comes from the PACH operating budget. 
 
On  January 13, 2012, HACA  issued an  Invitation  for Bids  to  remodel a  three‐bedroom 
residence  at  33625  Fifth  Street, Union  City.  The  scope  of work  included  a  complete 
remodel of the bathrooms and kitchen, replacement of all doors, windows, flooring and 
HVAC systems and some exterior work. The previous tenant had lived there for 20 years. 
The bid was awarded on March 12, 2012 and a contract was executed with Men of All 
Trades, Oakland, CA. The amount of the contract was $40,445.70. Funding for this work 
comes from the PACH operating budget. 
 
On March 12, 2012,  the Housing Authority  issued an  Invitation  for Bids  to  remodel a 
one‐bedroom residence at 2106 Nidus Ct. #18, Union City. The scope of work included a 
complete  remodel,  re‐configuration  and  installation  of  an  accessible  bathroom  and 
accessible  kitchen,  replacement  of  all  doors  including  the  patio  door  and  windows, 
including adding two new windows, flooring and the HVAC system. The previous tenant 
had  lived  there  for 25 years. The bid was awarded on March 29, 2012 and a contract 
was executed with TSM Building Construction, Oakland, CA. The amount of the contract 
was $39,306.00. Funding for this work comes from the Public Housing operating budget. 
 

Subject:  Procurement Awards 
   
Exhibits Attached:  None 
   
Recommendation:  Information only 
   
Financial Statement:  As indicated below 



22 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

Subject:  Quarterly Investment Portfolio Report 
   
Exhibits Attached:  Investment Portfolio Report for Quarter ended March 31, 

2012 
   
Recommendation:  Receive Report 
   
Financial Statement:  $22,197,393 Invested at an Average Monthly Yield ranging 

from 0.12% to 0.40% (excluding FSS Escrow Participant 
Accounts) 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Public Agencies  are  required  to  file  an  investment policy with  their  governing boards 
and to provide quarterly financial reports on the status of the Agency’s investments and 
to certify to their compliance with the approved investment policy. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The  investment portfolio report that  is attached reflects the  investments at March 31, 
2012 for each program that HACA administers.  
 
The Housing Choice Voucher program has  a  total  investment of $7,997,587, which  is 
36% of the total investment portfolio. 
 
The Housing Development Fund has a total investment of $10,911,884, which is 49% of 
the  total  investment  portfolio.    Approximately  61%  of  its  portfolio  is  in  the  State  of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).   
 
The Public Housing program has a  total  investment of $1,684,813, which  is 8% of  the 
total investment portfolio.   
 
Ocean Avenue and Park Terrace  investments are 3% and 4% of  the  total  investment, 
respectively. 
 
The FSS Participant Escrow Accounts are maintained in a savings account, in accordance 
with HUD regulations, at Union Bank. 
 



23 

 

 
 
 



24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET STATUS  
REPORT 

 
 



25 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 

Budget Status Report FYE 2011-2012 
FEBRUARY 2012 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FY 2012 Budgeted @ Actual @ OVER PROJECTED SCH. 2011 2012

OPERATING BUDGET 2/29/2012 2/29/2012 (UNDER) TO 6/30/12 NO. BUDGET BUDGET DIFFERENCE

INCOME

Investment Income 2,400 2,815 415 4,222 A1 3,600 3,600 0

Misc. Income 230,027 191,889 (38,138) 287,833 A1 358,200 345,040 (13,160)

(Fees) 4,847,316 4,682,812 (164,503) 7,021,566 A 8,060,912 7,270,973 (789,939)

TOTAL INCOME 5,079,742 4,877,516 (202,227) 7,313,621 8,422,712 7,619,613 (803,099)

EXPENSES

Administration

Salaries 2,927,600 2,616,195 (311,405) 4,021,239 B‐1& 2 4,749,188 4,391,400 (357,788)

Other Admin. 718,008 669,044 (48,964) 1,056,566 C‐1&2 1,099,199 1,077,012 (22,187)

Total 3,645,608 3,285,239 (360,369) 5,077,805 5,848,386 5,468,412 (379,975)

General

Insurance 136,019 123,007 (13,012) 184,511 E 194,547 204,029 9,482

Employee Benefits 1,463,800 1,415,747 (48,053) 2,163,621 2,374,594 2,195,700 (178,894)

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,599,819 1,538,754 (61,065) 2,348,131 2,569,141 2,399,729 (169,412)

Total Routine Expenses 5,245,427 4,823,993 (421,434) 7,425,937 8,417,527 7,868,141 (549,386)

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 D2 0 0 0

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,245,427 4,823,993 (421,434) 7,425,937 8,417,527 7,868,141 (549,386)

Income (Deficit) Unfunded 2012 FSS (1/2 year) ‐ Use of Reserve (158,607)

Income (Deficit)  (165,685) 53,523 219,207 46,291 5,185 (248,527) (253,713)

Total Net income (Deficit) (112,316)

Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/10 2,919,590$  

Deficit @ 6/30/11 (50,795)

Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/11 2,868,795

Budgeted Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/12 (248,527)

Budgeted Unrestricted Net Assets‐AF @ 6/30/12 2,620,268$  



26 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
PUBLIC HOUSING 

Budget Status Report FYE 2011-2012 
February 2012 

 
 

FY 2012 YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUALS

OVER/  

(UNDER) Projected SCH. 2011 2012  

OPERATING BUDGET 2/29/2012 2/29/12 BUDGET to 6/30/12 NO. BUDGET BUDGET Difference

INCOME

Dwelling Rentals 536,632 596,012 59,379 894,018 A‐1 1,030,260 804,948 (225,312)

Investment Income   1,350 7,681 6,331 11,522 A 900 2,025 1,125

Misc. Income 56,739 57,114 375 85,671 A‐1 158,756 85,108 (73,648)

Operating Subsidy  331,086 396,343 65,256 496,628 A‐1 398,218 496,628 98,410

Asset Reposition Fee 99,063 283,802 184,739 283,802 A‐1 0 148,594 148,594

Capital Grant  112,850 0 (112,850) 169,275 A‐1 231,178 169,275 (61,902)

TOTAL INCOME 1,137,719 1,340,952 203,232 1,940,916 1,819,312 1,706,579 (112,732)

 

EXPENSES  

 

Administration  

Salaries 255,630 249,428 (6,202) 381,478 B‐1& 2 312,533 383,445 70,912

Other Admin. 111,575 183,088 71,513 274,633 C‐1 64,902 167,363 102,461

Total 367,206 432,516 65,311 656,111 377,435 550,808 173,373

 

Tenant Services  

Resident Managers 3,667 1,800 (1,867) 2,700 5,500 5,500 0

Recreation 5,000 6,617 1,617 7,500 7,500 7,500 0

Total 8,667 8,417 (250) 10,200 13,000 13,000 0

 

Utilities  

Water 49,333 55,659 6,326 83,489 74,000 74,000 0

Electricity 12,667 16,179 3,513 24,269 19,000 19,000 0

Gas 1,733 2,068 336 3,102 2,600 2,600 0

Sewage 31,733 31,531 (202) 47,297 47,600 47,600 0

Total 95,466 105,438 9,973 158,156 143,199 143,199 0
 

Maintenance  

Salaries 93,213 87,151 (6,062) 130,726 B‐2 189,144 139,820 (49,324)

Materials 42,640 62,786 20,146 94,179 D 80,600 63,960 (16,640)

Contract Costs 311,035 469,921 158,886 704,882 D 586,151 466,552 (119,599)

Total 446,888 619,858 172,970 929,787 855,895 670,332 (185,564)
 

General  

Insurance 53,808 48,653 (5,155) 72,979 E 87,800 80,712 (7,087)

Tax‐In Lieu Of 44,117 42,357 (1,759) 63,536 88,706 66,175 (22,531)

Employee Benefits 174,422 158,234 (16,188) 237,351 250,839 261,633 10,794

Collection Loss 667 0 (667) 0 1,000 1,000 0

Miscellaneous 667 0 (667) 0 1,000 1,000 0

Total 273,680 249,244 (24,435) 373,866 429,344 410,520 (18,824)

 

Total Routine Expenses 1,191,906 1,415,473 223,568 2,128,120 1,818,874 1,787,859 (31,015)
 

Capital Expenditure 0 0 0
 

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,191,906 1,415,473 223,568 2,128,120 1,818,874 1,787,859 (31,015)
 

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (54,187) (74,520) (20,337) (187,203) 438 (81,280) (81,718)

Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/11 1,279,237$  

Budgeted Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/12 (81,280)

Budgeted Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/12 1,197,957$  



27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAM ACTIVITY 
REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  April 11, 2012 
 

Subject:  Programs Activity Report 
   
Exhibits Attached:  Section 8 Contract Report; Section 8 Average Contract Rent 

Report; Fraud Payments Report; Landlord Rental Listing Report; 
FSS Program Monthly Report 

   
Recommendation:  Receive Report 
   
Financial Statement:  None 

 

SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 
 

 Lease‐Up:   As of April 1, 2012 the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program had 
5,793 units under contract.  The fiscal year‐to‐date lease‐up average is 98.35% units.  
The budget authority use average through January 2012 is 99.7%. 

 

 Program Utilization:  As of April 1, 2012 the average HAP subsidy is $1,047 and the 
average tenant‐paid rent portion is $393 for an average Contract Rent of $1,440.   
 
 As of April 1, 2012 HACA had 86 outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., HACA 

voucher holders who are housed in another housing authority’s jurisdiction).   
 As of April 1, 2012 HACA billed other housing authorities, primarily the Oakland 

Housing Authority, for 1,626 incoming portability contracts.  HACA receives only 
80%  of  the  HUD‐authorized  Administrative  Fee  for  billed  incoming  portability 
contracts.   

 

 Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 

 Fraud  /  Debt  Recovery:    HACA  retained  $2,896.79  in  fraud  and  debt  recovery 
payments for the month of February 2012.  A total of $27,369.87 was retained over 
the last six months.   
 
HACA retained $135.00 in Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) overpayments for the 
month of February 2012.  A total of $1,638.00 was retained over the last six months. 
 

 Landlord Rental  Listings:   As of March  29,  2012  there were  1,544  landlords with 
properties in HACA’s jurisdiction utilizing the GoSection8 rental listing service.  There 
were 15 new landlords added to the Section 8 program this month.  There were 82 
active properties listed.  



29 

 
FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY (FSS) 

Although the recent fire across the street did no harm to HACA's building, it did disrupt 
the Saturday FSS Financial Management Workshop held on March 10.  Hayward Fire and 
Police  had  closed  the  block  so  participants weren't  able  to  park  nearby.    In  spite  of 
arriving  to  find  flashing  lights  and  police  barriers,  35  participants  surmounted  the 
difficulties and attended the workshop.  

There continues  to be great  interest  in  the  financial workshops  that we sponsor.   Our 
FSS Department  has  developed  excellent  relationships with  the  presenters;  however, 
funding cuts resulted  in our partner from Money Management  International being  laid 
off and office consolidation at Meriwest Credit Union has resulted in our regular trainer 
being  transferred  out  of  the  area.   We  hope  to  find  similar  dedicated  and  inspiring 
trainers to work with in the future. 

The  annual  FSS  Family Health  and  Resource  Fair  is  scheduled  for  July  28.    Since  our 
building will  be  undergoing  renovation  at  that  time  FSS  is working with  community 
contacts  to  locate  space  for  this  event.    The  space  needs  to  be  large  enough  to 
accommodate information tables and play areas for the children.  Accessibility to public 
transportation is a key requirement along with adequate parking.  All Commissioners are 
encouraged to attend.  

PUBLIC HOUSING 
 

 Occupancy:   As of April 1, 2012  the Public Housing program had 175 of 182 units 
leased  and has  a  96.86%  fiscal  year‐to‐date  lease  up  rate.    The  lower  number  of 
leased units  is due  to  the  fact  that we are converting  some of  the Public Housing 
units to Section 8 Project‐Based Vouchers and some families have chosen to move 
with a voucher rather than remain in their former Public Housing unit. 
 

 



30 

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda    
 

SECTION 8 CONTRACTS AND HAP REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF:  MARCH 2012 
 
 
 

  Certificates  Vouchers 
March 2012 

TOTAL   

City  Number  HAP*  Number HAP**  Number HAP   

March 
2011 

March 
2010 

Albany          ‐     $             ‐          39   $      40,833         39   $      40,833    
  

45 
  

43 

Castro 
Valley         14    $      12,334        233   $    243,951       247   $    256,285    

  
253 

  
252 

Dublin           2    $        1,762        298   $    312,006       300   $    313,768    
  

285 
  

239 

Emeryville           5    $        4,405        107   $    112,029       112   $    116,434    
  

95 
  

96 

Fremont         28    $      24,668      1,392   $ 1,457,424     1,420   $  1,482,092    
  

1,423 
  

1,441 

Hayward       113    $      99,553      2,459   $ 2,574,573     2,572   $  2,674,126    
  

2,461 
  

2,389 

Newark           2    $        1,762        280   $    293,160       282   $    294,922    
  

294 
  

296 

Pleasanton           4    $        3,524        155   $    162,285       159   $    165,809    
  

165 
  

150 

San 
Leandro         15    $      13,215      1,404   $ 1,469,988     1,419   $  1,483,203    

  
1,360 

  
1,332 

San 
Lorenzo           2    $        1,762        217   $    227,199       219   $    228,961    

  
200 

  
195 

Union City           4    $        3,524        764   $    799,908       768   $    803,432    
  

712 
  

706 

TOTALS      189  $166,509  7,348 $7,693,356    7,537  $7,859,865    7,293 7,139

 
 
 
*Based on an average March Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $881 per certificate contract 
**Based on an average March Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1047 per voucher contract 
 
 
  
  



31 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of:  APRIL 2012 
 

City  Number of 
HAP 

Contracts 

Average 
Contract 
Rent 

Average HAP 
Paid by 
HACA 

Average 
Rent Paid by 

Family 

Average 
Family‐Paid 
Rent as a 
Percentage 
of Average 
Contract 
Rent 

Albany  39  $1,311  $1,028  $284  22% 

Castro Valley  233  $1,358  $924  $434  32% 

Dublin  298  $1,605  $1,224  $382  24% 

Emeryville  107  $1,233  $848  $385  31% 

Fremont  1,391  $1,560  $1,135  $425  27% 

Hayward  2,460  $1,343  $968  $375  28% 

Newark  280  $1,801  $1,308  $493  27% 

Pleasanton  155  $1,353  $971  $381  28% 

San Leandro  1,403  $1,362  $988  $373  27% 

San Lorenzo  217  $1,608  $1,189  $420  26% 

Union City  764  $1,612  $1,187  $425  26% 

 
* some rents may vary by $1 due to rounding 



32 

 
 
 
 
 
 

11-12

DEBT COLLECTIONS
FYE 06/30/12

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE GRAND

TOTALS

DAMAGE CLAIMS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00

FRAUD REPAYMENTS $6,603.63 $13,226.48 $3,941.52 $4,775.18 $2,952.94 $4,563.48 $8,239.96 $2,896.79 $47,199.98

HAP OVERPAYMENTS $200.00 $350.00 $343.00 $200.00 $135.00 $135.00 $690.00 $135.00 $2,188.00

TOTALS $6,803.63 $13,576.48 $4,284.52 $4,975.18 $3,137.94 $4,698.48 $8,929.96 $3,031.79 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,437.98

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



33 

Monthly
4/5/2011 5/2/2011 6/1/2011 7/1/2011 8/1/2011 9/1/2011 9/29/2011 11/1/2011 12/1/2011 1/3/2012 2/1/2012 3/1/2012 3/29/2012

Registered Landlords 1468 1481 1484 1486 1492 1494 1498 1498 1504 1504 1523 1527 1544
Landlords New to 
Section 8 Program 4 3 5 3 7 3 3 0 5 0 16 2 15
Active Properties 
Listed 117 101 89 66 95 95 110 109 107 83 141 79 82

Landlord Rental Listing Report

Landlord Rental Listing Report

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

4/
1

/2
01

1

5/
1

/2
01

1

6/
1

/2
01

1

7/
1

/2
01

1

8/
1

/2
01

1

9/
1

/2
01

1

10
/1

/2
01

1

11
/1

/2
01

1

12
/1

/2
01

1

1/
1

/2
01

2

2/
1

/2
01

2

3/
1

/2
01

2

4/
1

/2
01

2

Registered Landlords

Landlords New to Section 8
Program

Active Properties Listed

 



34 

  

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 
CC:  Ron Dion, Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges 

Date:  April 2, 2012  

Program Summary March 2012 
Total Clients Under Contract: 185 
Graduates: 1 
Escrow Disbursed: $7,918.85 
Ports In: 1 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 1 
New Contracts: 0 
 
FSS PROGRAM NEWS:  
 
Workshops 
Saturday March 10, 2012, Meriwest Credit Union presented a Money Management II 
workshop. Participants engaged in learning how to: 

 Manage credit 
 Protect their credit score 
 Take action if their wallet or purse is lost or stolen 
 Access credit reports for free from all three different bureaus 
 Protect themselves when buying things on the web 
 Fight back against identity theft 

 
The initial start up of the workshop was very challenging. There was a large fire 
across the street from our building that began at 5:30 a.m. and resulted in the entire 
block being closed off for a few hours by the Hayward Police and Fire Departments. 
There was no vehicle access to our parking lot but participants were determined to 
attend. Workshop participants are required to arrive by a certain time before outside 
doors are closed for safety reasons.  
 
Everyone had to find parking on the nearby streets. In an effort to make sure she 
arrived on time, one mother was running down the street with her 6 year old 
daughter on her back so that she would arrive before the gates closed. Her 



35 

daughter’s crayons were falling on the ground. An FSS Coordinator encouraged her 
to stop and take her daughter off her back because we were allowing extra time for 
entrance due to the fire. She breathed a sigh of relief. Another mother pushed her 
disabled son in his wheel chair from two blocks away. She said she was not going to 
let an inconvenient parking situation stop her from attending a workshop she had 
missed in the past. Many said it was tough finding parking on the street but they did 
not give up because they wanted to get the information on Money Management. 
Over 35 participants attended. 

 
Wednesday March 14, 2012, FSS facilitated a HACA Scholarship / college financial 
aid workshop presented by FSS Program Manager Sharon DeCray and FSS 
participant Jamar Mears. Sharon reviewed the requirements of the HACA 
Scholarship. She discussed who may apply, how to apply, the application deadline, 
scholarship awards and disbursements. Jamar discussed general college financial 
aid options and resources. He shared his experience applying for financial aid and 
the importance of beginning the process early. He covered additional topics such as 
community college admission, equal opportunity programs for minorities, and a 
special program for foster youth. 

 
Referrals 
Case Management = 80 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 
A 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

       
       

 



 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 
B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

 

 
 



 

3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 
 



 

5 

 
 



 

6 

 
 
 



 

7 

 
 



 

8 

 
 
 



 

9 

 
 
 
 



 

10 

 
 



 

11 

 
 
 



 

12 

 

 
 



 

13 

 
 



 

14 

 
 



 

15 

 
 



 

16 

 
 



 

17 

 
 



 

18 

 
 
 
 

 


	Housing Commission Agenda
	Minutes of the March 14, 2012 Meeting
	5-1.  Recognize Gregory Koubek as HACA's Shining Star
	5-2.  Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2011
	Attachment A:  Audit Report

	5-3.  Revisions to HACA's Section 8 Administrative Plan
	Attachment B:  Revisions

	5-4.  Utility Allowance Schedule
	Proposed Utility Allowance Schedule
	Resolution No. 06-12

	5-5.  Procurement Awards
	5-6.  Quarterly Investment Portfolio Report
	Investment Portfolio for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2012

	5-7.  Budget Status Report
	Housing Choice Voucher
	Public Housing

	5-8.  Program Activity Report
	Section 8 Contract Report
	Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report
	Debt Collections Report
	Landlord Rental Listings Report
	FSS Program Summary


